IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC03-631

ASKARI ABDULLAH MUHAMMAD (F/K/A THOMAS KNIGHT)
Appellant,

v.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT
OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT,
IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, STATE OF FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

HEIDI E. BREWER
Attorney at Law
Florida Bar No. 0046965
2006 Atapha Nene
Tallahassee, FL 32301
COUNSEL FOR APPELLANT

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This proceeding involves an appeal of the circuit court's summary denial of Rule 3.850 relief, as well as various rulings made during the course of Mr. Muhammad's request for post conviction relief. The following symbols will be used to designate references to the record in this appeal:

"OT."- original trial record on appeal.

"R" -- record on direct appeal from Mr. Muhammad's Re-Sentencing Proceeding to this Court;

"PCR." -- record on post conviction appeal;

"PCT." (date)" -- post conviction transcripts.

¹At the time of this filing, the Clerk of Court, Dade County has yet to supplement the record. Because Petitioner desires to limit any further delay, he files his initial brief at this time. Any citations to items that are to be included in the supplemental record will be referred to by document name and page number.

REQUEST FOR ORAL ARGUMENT

Mr. Muhammad has been sentenced to death. The resolution of the issues involved in this action will therefore determine whether he lives or dies. This Court has not hesitated to allow oral argument in other capital cases in a similar posture as Mr. Muhammad. Accordingly counsel urges that the Court permit oral argument.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FAILED TO OBJECT TO OBVIOUS INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE.
COUNSEL FAILED TO EFFECTIVELY CROSS EXAMINE THE
STATE'S
WITNESSES. COUNSEL FAILED TO ADEQUATELY OBJECT TO
EIGHTH AMENDMENT ERROR. A FULL ADVERSARIAL TESTING
DID
NOT OCCUR. THE COURT AND STATE RENDERED COUNSEL
INEFFECTIVE. COUNSEL'S PERFORMANCE WAS DEFICIENT,
AND
AS A RESULT, MR. MUHAMMAD'S DEATH SENTENCE IS
UNRELIABLE.
3. <u>CLAIM IV</u> : MR. MUHAMMAD WAS DENIED HIS
RIGHTS UNDER
AKE V. OKLAHOMA AT HIS RE-SENTENCING, WHEN COUNSEL
FAILED TO OBTAIN AN ADEQUATE MENTAL HEALTH
EVALUATION
AND FAILED TO PROVIDE THE NECESSARY BACKGROUND
INFORMATION TO THE MENTAL HEALTH CONSULTANTS, ALL IN
VIOLATION OF MR. MUHAMMAD'S RIGHTS TO DUE PROCESS
AND
EQUAL PROTECTION UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO
THE
UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AS WELL AS HIS RIGHTS
UNDER
THE FIFTH, SIXTH, AND EIGHTH AMENDMENTS 35
4. CLAIM VI: THE STATE'S USE OF
MISLEADING
TESTIMONY AND IMPROPER ARGUMENT AND FAILURE TO
DISCLOSE
MATERIAL EXCULPATORY INFORMATION TO MR. MUHAMMAD
VIOLATED BRADY V. MARYLAND, U.S. V. GIGLIO AND THE
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS OF MR. MUHAMMAD UNDER THE
SIXTH,
EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. MR. MUHAMMAD'S
COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR NOT OBJECTING TO THE
IMPROPER CONDUCT BY THE STATE AND RENDERED
INEFFECTIVE
BY THE STATE'S ACTIONS. MR. MUHAMMAD WAS DENIED A
PROPER ADVERSARIAL TESTING
5. CLAIM VII: THE PROSECUTOR'S INFLAMMATORY AND

IMPROPER COMMENTS AND ARGUMENTS RENDERED MR.

MUHAMMAD'S
DEATH SENTENCE FUNDAMENTALLY UNFAIR AND UNRELIABLE
IN
VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH
AMENDMENTS. TRIAL COUNSEL RENDERED INEFFECTIVE
ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL FOR FAILING TO OBJECT, THEREBY
DENYING MR. MUHAMMAD HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE SIXTH
AMENDMENT AND HIS RIGHT TO A RELIABLE DIRECT APPEAL39
6. CLAIM XVII: JUROR MISCONDUCT OCCURRED IN MR.
MUHAMMAD'S RESENTENCING IN VIOLATION OF THE SIXTH,
EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED
STATES
CONSTITUTION AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE
FLORIDA CONSTITUTION
7. CLAIM XX: JUDICIAL BIAS THROUGHOUT MR.
MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING CONSTITUTES FUNDAMENTAL
ERROR
AND DENIED MR. MUHAMMAD'S RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE
•
UNITED
STATES CONSTITUTION. MR. MUHAMMAD WAS DENIED A FAIR
ADVERSARIAL TESTING
O CLAIM VVI. ND MILLAMAD WAS ADSENTED ON SECTION
8. <u>CLAIM XXI</u> : MR. MUHAMMAD WAS ABSENT FROM CRITICAL STAGES OF HIS RE-SENTENCING PROCEEDING. AS A RESULT
MR. MUHAMMAD'S RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH,
EIGHTH
EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. <u>CLAIM XXII</u> : MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND CORRESPONDING FLORIDA
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND CORRESPONDING FLORIDA
AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS WERE VIOLATED 50 9. CLAIM XXII: MR. MUHAMMAD'S RE-SENTENCING COUNSEL WAS LABORING UNDER AN ACTUAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST RESULTING IN PREJUDICE TO MR. MUHAMMAD AND IN VIOLATION OF HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION AND CORRESPONDING FLORIDA LAW

VIEWED

AS A WHOLE SINCE THE COMBINATION OF ERRORS DEPRIVED HIM
OF THE FUNDAMENTALLY FAIR TRIAL GUARANTEED UNDER THE
SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS 52
ARGUMENT II
FLORIDA'S SENTENCING PROCEDURE REQUIRING ONLY A BARE MAJORITY OF JURORS TO RECOMMEND DEATH VIOLATES 921.141, FLORIDA STATUTES, ARTICLE I, SECTION 17 OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION AND AMENDMENTS SIX, EIGHT AND FOURTEEN OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION. RING V. ARIZONA. MR. MUHAMMAD"S COUNSEL WAS INEFFECTIVE FOR FAILING TO RAISE THIS ISSUE.
ARGUMENT III THE INTRODUCTION OF NON STATUTORY AGGRAVATING FACTORS SO PERVERTED THE SENTENCING PHASE OF MR. MUHAMMAD'S TRIAL THAT IT RESULTED IN THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY, IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS OF THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION
ARGUMENT IV
MR. MUHAMMAD'S SENTENCING JURY WAS IMPROPERLY INSTRUCTED ON AGGRAVATING FACTORS DUE TO THE VAGUENESS OF INSTRUCTIONS AND THE FACT THAT THE AGGRAVATING FACTORS DID NOT APPLY IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS.
ARGUMENT V
MR. MUHAMMAD'S SENTENCING JURY WAS MISLED BY COMMENTS, QUESTIONS, AND INSTRUCTIONS THAT UNCONSTITUTIONALLY AND INACCURATELY DILUTED THE JURY'S SENSE OF RESPONSIBILITY TOWARDS SENTENCING IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION.63
ARGUMENT VI
MR. MUHAMMAD'S SENTENCE OF DEATH VIOLATES THE FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION BECAUSE THE LAW SHIFTED THE BURDEN TO MR. MUHAMMAD TO PROVE THAT DEATH WAS INAPPROPRIATE AND BECAUSE THE TRIAL COURT EMPLOYED A PRESUMPTION OF DEATH

IN SENTENCING MR. MUHAMMAD 66
ARGUMENT VII
FLORIDA'S STATUTE SETTING FORTH THE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCES TO BE CONSIDERED IN A CAPITAL CASE IS FACIALLY VAGUE AND OVERBROAD IN VIOLATION OF THE EIGHTH AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS. THE FACIAL INVALIDITY OF THE STATUTE WAS NOT CURED IN MR. MUHAMMAD'S CASE BECAUSE THE JURY DID NOT RECEIVE ADEQUATE GUIDANCE. AS A RESULT, MR. MUHAMMAD'S SENTENCE OF DEATH IS PREMISED UPON FUNDAMENTAL ERROR THAT NOW MUST BE CORRECTED 67
ARGUMENT VIII MR. MUHAMMAD WAS DENIED HIS RIGHTS UNDER THE FOURTH, FIFTH, SIXTH, EIGHTH, AND FOURTEENTH AMENDMENTS TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION, AND THE CORRESPONDING PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, WHEN THE PROSECUTOR IMPERMISSIBLY SUGGESTED TO THE JURY THE LAW REQUIRED THAT IT RECOMMEND A SENTENCE OF DEATH.
ARGUMENT IX
FLORIDA'S CAPITAL SENTENCING STATUTE IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL ON ITS FACE AND AS APPLIED IN THIS CASE BECAUSE IT FAILS TO PREVENT THE ARBITRARY AND CAPRICIOUS IMPOSITION OF THE DEATH PENALTY, AND IT VIOLATES THE CONSTITUTIONAL GUARANTEES OF DUE PROCESS AND PROHIBITING CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT.
ARGUMENT X
MR. MUHAMMAD'S EIGHTH AMENDMENT RIGHT AGAINST CRUEL AND UNUSUAL PUNISHMENT WILL BE VIOLATED AS MR. MUHAMMAD MAY BE INCOMPETENT AT THE TIME OF EXECUTION.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
REQUEST FOR INDEPENDENT REVIEW OF SEALED RECORDS 75
<u>CONCLUSION</u>
<u>CERTIFICATE OF FONT</u>



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

<u>Apprendi v. New Jersey</u> , 120 S. Ct. 2348 (2000)51, 60, 67
<u>Ake v. Oklahoma</u> , 105 s. Ct. 1087 (1985)33
<u>Archer v. State</u> , 613 So. 2d 446 (Fla. 1993)
<u>Caldwell v. Mississippi</u> , 472 U.S. 320 (1985)61, 62, 64
<pre>Cuyler v. Sullivan 446 U.S. 335, 344 (1980) 48, 49</pre>
Barclay v. Florida, 463 U.S. 939, 955 (Fla. 1983)56
Banda v. State, 536 So. 2d 221, 224 (Fla. 1988)67
<pre>Brady v. Maryland, 373 U.S. 83 (1963) 1, 24, 36, 37.</pre>
Brown v. State, 596 So. 2d 1026 (Fla. 1992)
Black's Law Dictionary, Fifth Edition, 1979
Elledge v. State, 346 So. 2d 998, 1003 (Fla. 1977)54, 56
Espinosa v. Florida, 112 S. Ct. 2926 (1992)55, 56, 58, 61, 63, 66, 71
<u>Flanning v. State</u> , 597 So. 2d 864, 867 (Fla. 3d DCA 1992)52
Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.850 6
Ford v. Wainwright, 477 U.S. 399, 106 S.Ct. 2595 (1986)

Fla. R. 3.581, <u>Court Commentary</u> , <u>2001 Amendment</u> 7
Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.98711
<u>Furman v. Georgia</u> , 408 U.S. 238 (1972)53, 62, 71
<u>Gaskin v. State</u> , 737 So.2d 509, 516 (Fla. 1999)6,7
<u>Hall v. State</u> , 541 So. 2d 1125 (Fla. 1989)61
<pre>Hamilton v. State, 547 So. 2d 630, 633 (Fla. 1989)66</pre>
<u>Harvey v. Dugger</u> , 656 So. 2d 1253, 1257 (Fla. 1995)10
<u>Hicks v. Oklahoma</u> , 447 U.S. 343 (1980)
<u>Hitchcock v. Dugger</u> , 863 F.2d 705 (11th Cir. 1988)12,14,61,64
<pre>Huff v. State, 622 So 2d 982 (Fla. 1993)4</pre>
<u>Johnson v. Singletary</u> , 612 So. 2d 575, 577 (Fla. 1993)61
<u>Jones v. State</u> , 569 So. 2d 1234, 1238 (Fla. 1990)
<u>Kearse v. State</u> , 662 So 2d 677 (Fla. 1995)
<pre>Knight v. Florida, 528 U.S. 990, 120 S. Ct. 459 (1999) 3</pre>
<pre>Knight v. State, 338 So. 2d 201 (Fla. 1976)</pre>

<u>Knight v. State</u> , 394 So. 2d 997 (Fla. 1981) 1
<pre>Knight v. State,746 So.2d 43 (1998)3, 14, 19, 20 , 37, 38</pre>
<u>Lawrence v. State</u> , 614 So. 2d 1092 (Fla. 1993)57
<u>Lemon v. State</u> , 498 So. 2d 923 (Fla. 1986)12,48
<u>Lowenfield v. Phelps</u> , 108 S. Ct. 546 (1988)56
<pre>Mann v. Dugger, 844 F.2d 1446 (11th Cir. 1988)(en banc), cert denied, 109 S.Ct. 1353 (1989)61, 62, 63</pre>
<u>Maharaj v. State</u> , 684 So. 2d 726 (Fla. 1996)48
Martinez-Villareal v. Stewart, 118 S. Ct. 1618, 523 U. S. 637, 140 L.Ed.2d 849(1998)72
<u>Maynard v. Cartwright</u> , 108 S. Ct. 1853, 1858 (1988)56, 64
<u>Meeks v. Dugger</u> , 576 So. 2d 713 (Fla. 1991)61
McCampbell v. State, 421 So. 2d 1072, 1075 (Fla. 1982)63
<u>Miller v. State</u> , 373 So. 2d 882 (Fla. 1979)54
<u>Mills v. Dugger</u> , 559 So. 2d 578, 578-579 (Fla. 1990)9
<u>Muhammad v. State</u> , 426 So. 2d 533 (Fla. 1982) 2

Muhammad v. State, 603 So. 2d 488 (Fla.

1992)6
<u>Mullaney v. Wilbur</u> , 421 U.S. 684 (1975)64
Newlon v. Armontrout, 885 F.2d 1328, 1338 (8th Cir. 1989)69
O'Callaghan v. State, 461 So. 2d 1354, 1355 (Fla. 1984)48
<u>Padilla v. State</u> , 618 So. 2d 165 (1993)57
Potts v. Zant, 734 F.2d 526, 536 (11th Cir. 1984)
Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242, 96 S. Ct. 2960, 2969 (1976)
Richmond v. Lewis, 113 S. Ct. 528 (1992)60, 61, 65,66, 67,71
Riley v. State, 366 So. 2d 19 (Fla. 1979)54
Ring v. Arizona, 122 S. Ct. 2428 (2002)4,51,60, 63,67
Robinson v. State, 520 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1988)54
<pre>State v. Dixon, 283 So. 2d 1 (Fla. 1973), cert. denied, 416 U.S. 943 (1974)</pre>
Sochor v. Florida, 112 s. Ct. 2114 (1992)
<pre>Strickland v. Washington, 466 U.S. 668, 104 S. Ct. 2052,(1984)</pre>
Stringer v. Black, 112 S. Ct. 1130 (1992)

<u>Tedder v. State</u> , 322 So. 2d 908, 910 (Fla. 1975)58, 62, 63
<u>Thompson v. State</u> , 648 So. 2d 692, 698 (Fla. 1994)10
<u>Thompson v. State</u> , 731 So. 2d 1235, 1256 (Fla. 1999)52
<u>Turner v. Williams</u> , 35 F.3d 872, 880 (4th Cir. 1994)66
<u>United States v. Giglio</u> ,405 U.S. 150, 154 (1972)24,36
<u>Ventura v. State</u> , 673 So. 2d 479 (Fla. 1996)9
<u>Walton v. Arizona</u> , 497 U.S. 639, 653 (1990)
Welty v. State, 402 So. 2d 1159, 1162 (Fla. 1981)55
<pre>White v. State, 616 So. 2d 21 (Fla. 1993)57</pre>
<pre>Zeigler v. Dugger, 524 So. 2d 419 (Fla. 1988), cert. denied, 112 S. Ct. 390</pre>

55,56,58

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND OF THE FACTS

A. TRIAL & RE-SENTENCING PROCEEDINGS.

The Circuit Court in and for the Eleventh Judicial Circuit, Dade County Florida entered the judgments and sentences under consideration. On August 28, 1974, the grand jury indicted Mr. Muhammad for the First Degree Murders of Lillian and Sidney Gans (OT. 3700-3702). Mr. Muhammad's trial was held April 2, 1975. He entered pleas of Not Guilty and Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity (OT. 3761-3162).

On April 19, 1975, the jury returned a verdict of guilty on the charges of First Degree Murder (OT. 3799-3800) and the jury recommended a sentence of death. The trial court sentenced Mr. Muhammad on April 21, 1975 (O.T. 3803-3806).

On direct appeal, this Court affirmed Mr. Muhammad's convictions and sentences. <u>Knight v. State</u>, 338 So. 2d 201 (Fla. 1976).

On January 22, 1980, Mr. Muhammad filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus which was dismissed by the trial court. This Court rejected Mr. Muhammad's habeas claims. Knight v. State, 394 So. 2d 997 (Fla. 1981).

²In a separate case, Mr. Muhammad was convicted and sentenced to death for murder of a prison guard. On direct appeal, this Court affirmed. <u>Muhammad v. State</u>, 494 So. 2d 969 (Fla. 1986). Mr. Muhammad filed a Motion for Postconviction Relief which the trial court summarily denied. On appeal from the summary denial, this Court

On January 29, 1981, the Governor signed a death warrant in the instant case. Mr. Muhammad filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and Stay of Execution in the United States District Court, Southern District of Florida, Miami Division. The district court granted Mr. Muhammad's motion, retained jurisdiction and ordered Mr. Muhammad to exhaust his remaining state law claims. Mr. Muhammad filed a Post Conviction Motion pursuant to Fla. Rule Crim. P. 3.850. The trial court summarily denied the motion and this Court affirmed the denial. Muhammad v. State, 426 So. 2d 533 (Fla. 1982).

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