IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC03-631

THOMAS KNIGHT, N/K/A ASKARI ABDULLAH MUHAMMAD

Appellant,

vs.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY,

CRIMINAL DIVISION

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

CHARLES J. CRIST, JR. Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

SANDRA S. JAGGARD
Assistant Attorney General
Florida Bar No. 0012068
Office of the Attorney General
Rivergate Plaza -- Suite 950
444 Brickell Avenue
Miami, Florida 33131
PH. (305) 377-5441
FAX (305) 377-5654

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

However, neither in the trial court or in this Court has Defendant identified any adverse affect that the alleged conflict of interest had on his counsel's performance. In fact, Defendant has not even alleged in a conclusory fashion that the alleged conflict had an adverse affect on the representation. As such, the claim was facially insufficient and was properly summarily denied. Ragsdale v. State, 720 So. 2d 203, 207 (Fla. 1998).

Moreover, counsel's alleged fear of Defendant did not even constitute a conflict of interest as a matter of law. Claims of conflict of interest must generally be based representation and not on conflicts with an attorney's self interest. See Beets v. Scott, 65 F.3d 1258, 1270-71 (5th Cir. 1995); Bonin v. Calderon, 59 F.3d 815, 826 (9th Cir. 1995). fact, the Court noted in Mickens that it had not extended the definition of a conflict of interest beyond the issue of multiple representation and indicated that such a extension might not be warranted. Mickens, 535 U.S. at 174-76. Here, the alleged conflict of interest was based on counsels' concern for their own safety. (RSR. 1895-96, RST. 57) As such a fear does not concern any dual representation, it does not support a claim of conflict of interest. Thus, the lower court properly summarily denied this claim.

J. THE SUMMARY DENIAL OF THE CUMULATIVE ERROR CLAIM WAS PROPER.

Defendant next asserts that the lower court erred in denying his claim of cumulative error. However, the lower court's summary denial of this proper. This Court has held that where the individual errors alleged are either procedurally barred or without merit, the cumulative error claim also fails. Downs v. State, 740 So. 2d 506, 509 n.5 (Fla. 1999). As argued throughout this brief, the lower court properly found the individual claims procedurally barred and without merit. As such, the lower court properly summarily denied this claim.

II. DEFENDANT'S RING CLAIM WAS PROPERLY SUMMARILY DENIED.

Defendant next asserts that the trial court erred in denying his claim that his death sentence violated *Ring v. Arizona*, 536 U.S. 584 (2002), because the jury did not unanimously recommend death. However, this claim was properly summarily denied.

In Schriro v. Summerlin, 124 S. Ct. 2519 (2004), the Court held that Ring did not apply retroactively to cases that were final when Ring issued. Defendant's sentence became final on November 8, 1999, when the United States Supreme Court denied certiorari from resentencing appeal. Knight v. State, 528 U.S. 990 (1999). Ring was not issued until June 24, 2002. As such, Defendant is entitled to no relief. The lower court properly

summarily denied this claim.

Moreover, this Court has repeatedly rejected *Ring* challenges to Florida's capital sentencing scheme, particularly in cases in which the death sentence was supported by the prior violent felony aggravator, as is true here. *E.g.*, *Reed v. State*, 29 Fla. L. Weekly S156 (Fla. Apr. 15, 2004). As such, the lower court properly summarily denied this claim. It should be affirmed.

III. THE CLAIM REGARDING THE ALLEGED USE OF NONSTATUTORY AGGRAVATION WAS PROPERLY DENIED.

Defendant next asserts that the trial court erred in denying his claim that State improperly presented nonstatutory aggravation. However, the lower court properly denied this claim as procedurally barred.

On direct appeal, Defendant asserted that the trial court erred in allowing the State to present nonstatutory aggravation and in finding of HAC based on speculation and that consideration of the Bradford County conviction was improper. Initial Brief of Appellant, Florida Supreme Court Case No. 87783, at 48-51, 74-76, 84-86. This Court found that these claims did not present reversible error. *Knight*, 746 So. 2d at 431 n.10, 434, 435-36. As these issues were raised, these claims are procedurally barred. *Cherry v. State*, 659 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1995). Moreover, couching the claim in terms of

ineffective assistance of counsel does not lift the bar. Harvey v. Dugger, 656 So. 2d 1253, 1256 (Fla. 1995); Medina v. State, 573 So. 2d 293, 295 (Fla. 1990); Swafford v. Dugger, 569 So. 2d 1264, 1267 (Fla. 1990). To the extent this claim was not raised on direct appeal, the claim is still procedurally barred because the claim could have and should have been raised on direct appeal. Francis v. Barton, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla.), cert. denied, 501 U.S. 1245 (1991). Thus, the lower court properly denied this claim as procedurally barred.

IV. THE CLAIM REGARDING THE AGGRAVATORS WAS PROPERLY DENIED.

Defendant next contends that the trial court erred in denying his claim that the trial court erred in instructing the jury on the aggravating circumstances. Specifically, Defendant asserted that the evidence was insufficient to support an instruction on CCP and HAC, that the jury should not have been allowed to consider his murder from Bradford County, that the instruction on the pecuniary gain aggravator was vague, that the jury should not have been instructed on the during the course of a kidnapping aggravator because he was not charged with kidnapping, that the avoid arrest aggravator doubled with the "flight" aggravator and that an automatic aggravator was considered in this case. However, the lower court properly

summarily denied this claim as procedurally barred, facially insufficient and without merit as a matter of law.

Issues regarding the propriety of the jury instructions regarding aggravating circumstances are issues that could have and should have been raised on direct appeal. Thompson v. State, 759 So. 2d 650, 667 (Fla. 2000); Valle v. State, 705 So. 2d 1331, 1335 (Fla. 1997). Issues that could have and should have been raised on direct appeal are procedurally barred in post conviction proceedings. Francis v. Barton, 581 So. 2d 583 (Fla.), cert. denied, 501 U.S. 1245 (1991). In fact, Defendant raised most of the claims he now raises on direct appeal. Initial Brief of Appellant, Case No. 87783, at 73-81, 84-85, 90-93, 95-96. This Court rejected all of these claims. Knight, 746 So. 2d at 434-36. Thus, the claim are procedurally barred. Cherry v. State, 659 So. 2d 1069 (Fla. 1995). The lower court properly summarily denied this claim and should be affirmed.

Moreover, the lower court also properly denied this claim as without merit as a matter of law. This Court found the evidence sufficient to support CCP on direct appeal. *Knight*, 746 So. 2d at 436. As such, Defendant's claim that the trial court erred in instructing the jury on the aggravator because the evidence was insufficient was properly summarily denied.

This Court found that the error in instructing the jury on,

and finding, HAC was harmless. *Id.* at 435-36. While Defendant asserts that such an error cannot be harmless, both this Court and the United States Supreme Court have held that instructing a jury on an aggravator that is not supported by sufficient evidence can be harmless error. *Sochor v. Florida*, 504 U.S. 527, 538 (1992); *Foster v. State*, 679 So. 2d 747, 753-74 (Fla. 1996); *Johnson v. Singletary*, 612 So. 2d 575, 576 (Fla. 1993). As such, this claim was properly summarily denied.

While Defendant asserts that it was improper to allow the jury to consider his Bradford County murder conviction, this is untrue. This Court specifically rejected this claim when it was raised on direct appeal. *Knight*, 746 So. 2d at 434. Moreover, the facts presented about this conviction were true, and counsel did present evidence concerning Defendant's alleged mental state at the time of that crime. (RST. 2233-2301, 2555-56, 2874-76, 3387-3402) As such, this claim was properly denied.

While Defendant asserts that the jury instruction on the pecuniary gain aggravator was flawed because it did not inform the jury that the sole motive for the murder had to be financial gain, the instruction was proper. This Court has held that financial gain does not have to be the sole motive for the murder for the pecuniary gain aggravator to apply, that the finding of pecuniary gain is not inconsistent with the finding

of avoid arrest and that the aggravator and instruction thereon are not unconstitutionally vague. *Card v. State*, 803 So. 2d 613, 625, 628 & n.16 (Fla. 2001). As such, this claim was properly summarily denied.

While Defendant asserts that it was improper to instruct the jury on the during the course of a kidnapping aggravator because he was not charged or convicted of kidnapping, this is not true. This Court has directly held, "The state need not charge and convict of felony murder or any felony in order for the court to find the aggravating factor of murder committed during the course of a felony." Occhicone v. State, 570 So. 2d 902, 905 (Fla. 1990); see also Pietri v. State, 644 So. 2d 1347, 1353 n.11 (Fla. 1994). As such, the jury was properly instructed on this aggravator.

Defendant also contends that the form of the instruction allowed the jury to find the aggravator based both upon flight and the commission of a kidnapping. However, this is untrue. The instruction provided that the jury could consider as an aggravating factor that Defendant killed during the course of a kidnapping. (RSR. 1473) It explained that it did not matter when during the kidnapping the murders occurred. *Id*. Defendant's claim appears to be based on the mere use of the word flight in the instruction. However, it is well settled

that:

[A] single instruction cannot be considered alone, but must be considered in light of <u>all</u> other instructions bearing upon the subject, and if, when so considered, the law appears to have been fairly presented to the jury, the assignment on the instruction must fail.

Higginbotham v. State, 19 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1944)(emphasis added); see also Esty v. State, 642 So. 2d 1074, 1080 (Fla. 1994). When the instruction is considered as a whole, the instruction was proper. Thus, the claim was properly summarily denied.

Defendant next contends that the instruction on the avoid arrest aggravator was improper because it permitted double counting with the "flight" aggravator. However, as there was no flight aggravator, there was no improper doubling. As such, this meritless claim was properly summarily denied.

While Defendant asserts that the imposition of the death penalty is based on an unconstitutional automatic aggravator, this is untrue. The fact that an aggravator, such as the during the course of a felony aggravator, is found in the guilt phase does not render that aggravator unconstitutional. Sims v. State, 681 So. 2d 1112 (Fla. 1996); Kearse v. State, 662 So. 2d 677 (Fla. 1995); see also Lowenfield v. Phelps, 484 U.S. 231 (1988). As such, the claim is without merit and was properly summarily denied.

V. THE CLAIM REGARDING THE ALLEGED CALDWELL ERROR WAS PROPERLY SUMMARILY DENIED.

Defendant next asserts that the lower court erred in denying his claim that comments in his case violated *Caldwell v. Mississippi*, 472 U.S. 320 (1985), and the jury was not properly instructed on a tie vote. However, these claims were properly summarily denied as procedurally barred, facially insufficient and without merit.

Claims of *Caldwell* error and claims of ineffective assistance of counsel based on alleged *Caldwell* errors are procedurally barred in post conviction motions. *Oats v. Dugger*, 638 So. 2d 20, 21 & n.1 (Fla. 1994). The same is true of issues regarding the propriety of jury instructions. *Thompson v. State*, 759 So. 2d 650, 667 (Fla. 2000); *Valle v. State*, 705 So. 2d 1331, 1335 (Fla. 1997). As such, this claim was properly be denied.

Moreover, the claim regarding the tie vote was properly denied because it is facially insufficient. The entirety of Defendant's allegation on this claim below was, "The court also failed to instruct the jury that a 6-6 vote was a life sentence." (PCR. 276) However, such conclusory allegations are facially insufficient to state a claim. Ragsdale v. State, 720 So. 2d 203, 207 (Fla. 1998). The claim was properly summarily

denied.

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